IN THE IOWA SUPREME COURT

NO. 18-0509

LOREN DANNER and PAN DANNER,

Plaintiffs/Appellants,

VS.

CARROLL COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT OF CARROLL COUNTY, IOWA,

Defendant/Appellee

APPEAL FROM THE IOWA DISTRICT COURT
IN AND FOR CARROLL COUNTY, IOWA
Case No. CVCV039749
THE HONORABLE KURT J. STOEBE

**FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANTS
LOREN DANNER AND PAN DANNER**

STEVEN HAMILTON
Hamilton Law Firm, P.C.
P.O. Box 188
606 Ontario Street
Storm Lake, Iowa 50588
(712) 732-2842
(712) 732-6202 (FAX)
steve@hamiltonlawfirm.com
ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANTS

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

ARGUMENT I

UNDER PRINCIPLES OF RES JUDICATA, THE SUCCESS OF THIS APPEAL RISES AND FALLS WITH THE APPEAL IN THE INITIAL CASE. CONSEQUENTLY, DANNERS ASSERT THAT IF THE SUPREME COURT ACCEPTS FURTHER REVIEW IN CARROLL AIRPORT COMMISSION OPERATING THE ARTHUR N. NEU MUNICIPAL AIRPORT IS ACCEPTED AND REVERSED, THIS ACTION WOULD BE REVERSED AS WELL.

Cases:

Amalgamated Cotton Garment & Allied Industries Fund v. JBC Co.,
608 F. Supp. 158 (W. D. Pa. 1984)

B & B Asphalt Co., Inc. v. T.S. McShane Co., Inc.,
242 N.W.2d 279 (Iowa 1976)

Fennelly v. A-1 Machine & Tool Co.,
728 N.W.2d 163 (Iowa Sup. Ct. 2006)

Fennelly v. A-1 Machine & Tool Co.,
728 N.W.2d 181 (Iowa Sup. Ct. 2007)

Villareal v. United Fire & Cas. Co.,
873 N.W.2d 714 (Iowa Sup. Ct. 2016)

Statutes:

Iowa R. App. P. Rule 6.1101(3)(a)

Other Authorities:

Restatement (Second) of Judgments Sec. 16, at 145 (1982)

ROUTING STATEMENT

Appellants believe this matter is an application of existing legal principles and therefore should be assigned to the Iowa Court of Appeals under Iowa R. App. P. Rule 6.1101(3)(a) because the outcome of this case will be determined by the actions of the Iowa Supreme Court as to whether they grant further review in **Carroll Airport Commission v. Danner, Carroll County No. EQCV039422; Supreme Court No. 17-1458.**

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal of a Petition for Judicial Review of a denial of a zoning variance by the Carroll County, Iowa, Board of Adjustment. Loren and Pan Danner had erected a grain leg that was not in compliance with height restrictions imposed by the Carroll City Airport, a/k/a Arthur Neu Airport. They secured a building permit for a grain leg from the Building Inspector Carl Wilburn. However, the building permit did not take into consideration the height limits imposed by the Airport and the leg height did violate certain vertical restrictions. After a nuisance action was filed by the Airport Commission (App. Pp. 9-10), the Danner's sought a variance. The variance was denied (App. P. 11) and the Danner's appealed by Petition for Judicial Review. (App. Pp. 5-8). Judicial review was denied and the Danner's appealed that ruling. (App. Pp. 28-30).

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

This Statement of the Facts is taken from the District Court Ruling in **Carroll Airport Commission v. Danner, Carroll County No. EQCV039422; Supreme Court No. 17-1458.**

Pan Danner and Loren Danner farm east of the City of Carroll, Iowa, and within two miles of the Arthur Neu Airport. They have been in that location for approximately 50 years. (App. P. 14) In the summer of 2013, the Danners erected a grain leg. (App. P. 14) Prior to the construction, Loren Danner had gone to the Carroll County Zoning Administrator, Carl Wilburn. Mr. Wilburn granted the Danner's a building permit based upon an agricultural exemption from all zoning regulations. (App. P. 15). Wilburn later indicated he did not know that the grain leg would be subject to any airport zoning regulations. The grain leg in question serviced approximately five (5) grain bins located on the Danner property. Three of the bins belonged to the Danner's and two belonged to others. (App. Pp. 14-15). The grain leg is within 10,000 feet horizontally of the approach end of Runway 31, of the Arthur Neu Airport. The height of the grain is 126.47 feet agl (above ground level). The Airport protected air space starts at 1354 feet above mean sea level (msl). The grain leg penetrated such airspace to

the height of 1413.43 feet msl, so it was approximately 59 feet in violation. (App. P. 15).

The Danners contacted the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) to secure a variance. The FAA investigated and determined that the grain leg did not constitute a hazard as long as it met certain lighting and paint conditions. (App. P. 16). The Airport Commission did not agree to this and filed their petition to abate a nuisance. (App. Pp. 9-10, 16).

In the nuisance abatement proceeding, the Danners argued for Federal Preemption. Judge Ostlund held that the matter was not foreclosed by Federal Preemption. The Danners appealed. Their appeal was routed to the Iowa Court of Appeals which denied their appeal. They have a pending Application for Further Review.

ARGUMENT I

UNDER PRINCIPLES OF RES JUDICATA, THE SUCCESS OF THIS APPEAL RISES AND FALLS WITH THE APPEAL IN THE INITIAL CASE. CONSEQUENTLY, DANNERS ASSERT THAT IF THE SUPREME COURT ACCEPTS FURTHER REVIEW IN CARROLL AIRPORT COMMISSION OPERATING THE ARTHUR N. NEU MUNICIPAL AIRPORT IS ACCEPTED AND REVERSED, THIS ACTION WOULD BE REVERSED AS WELL.

This case was decided by Judge Stoebe on the basis that the determination of **Carroll Airport Commission operating the Arthur N. Neu Municipal Airport v. Loren W. Danner and Pan Danner**, Iowa Supreme Court Application for Further Review; Carroll County No. EQCV039422; Supreme Court No. 17-1458, had previously decided

the same issues. Danners in this case do not dispute that the issues are the same but the Court of Appeals was in error in the above case and filed their Application for Further Review. See **Carroll Airport Commission v. Danners**, S. Ct. 17-1458.

In *Fennelly v. A-1 Machine & Tool Co.*, 728 N.W.2d. 181 (Iowa Sup. Ct. 2007), the Court was confronted with how the effect of a prior judgment applying a statute of limitations would apply to a later action. The Court held that a prior decision that the statute of limitations barred a tax collection matter would apply as well to a later action essentially doing the same thing. In a previous case, *Fennelly v. A-1 Machine & Tool Co.*, 728 N.W.2d. 163 (Iowa Sup. Ct. 2006), the Trial Court held that the claim of taxes was barred by the statute of limitations. The Supreme Court held otherwise. Because the second Fennelly claim was decided by the Trial Court to be governed by res judicata, the issue arose what would happen if the first case were appealed and reversed.

The Supreme Court applied Restatement (Second) of Judgments Sec. 16, at 145 (1982). The Court stated: "*A judgment that has been reversed on appeal is thereby deprived of all conclusive effect for purposes of both res judicata and collateral estoppel*" quoting *Amalgamated Cotton Garment & Allied Industries Fund v. JBC Co.*, 608 F. Supp. 158 (W. D. Pa. 1984). See also *B & B Asphalt Co., Inc. v. T.S. McShane Co., Inc.*, 242 N.W.2d 279 (Iowa

1976); *Villareal v. United Fire & Cas. Co.*, 873 N.W.2d 714 (Iowa Sup. Ct. 2016).

CONCLUSION

Appellants Danner believe the outcome in this case will be determined by the resolution of the Iowa Supreme Court in **Carroll Airport Commission v. Danner**, Carroll County No. EQCV039422, Supreme Court No. 17-1458. If the Supreme Court denies Further Review to Danners, that case will be res judicata as to this matter. If the Supreme Court grants Further Review and reverses the matter, this case as well will be reversed under principles of res judicata.