IN THE

SUPREME COURT OF IOWA

Supreme Court No. 18-0509 Carroll County No. CVCV039749

LOREN DANNER AND PAM DANNER,

Petitioners-Appellants,

v.

CARROLL COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT,

Respondent-Appellee.

Appeal from the Iowa District Court for Carroll County The Honorable Kurt J. Stoebe, Judge

FINAL BRIEF FOR APPELLEE

And

REQUEST FOR NON-ORAL SUBMISSION

JOHN C. WERDEN, AT0008430 CARROLL COUNTY ATTORNEY AARON W. AHRENDSEN, AT0012634 ASSISTANT CARROLL COUNTY ATTORNEY 823 North Main Street Carroll, IA 51401

Ph: (712) 792-8013 Fax: (712) 792-7770

Email: aahrendsen@carrollcountyattorney.org

ATTORNEYS FOR APPELLEE

PROOF OF SERVICE AND CERTIFICATE OF FILING

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

I. WHETHER THE COURT SHOULD AFFIRM THE DISTRICT COURT'S RULING AS IT IS UNABLE TO REACH THE MERITS OF THIS APPEAL BECAUSE THERE IS NO AGENCY RECORD TO REVIEW BECAUSE THE DANNER'S FAILED TO TRANSFER OR FILE THE AGENCY RECORD WITH THE DISTRICT COURT AND NO RECORD WAS MADE OF THE DISTRICT COURT PROCEEDINGS.

Cases:

Alvarez v. IBP, Inc., 696 N.W.2d 1 (Iowa 2005)

Jensen v. City Council of Cambridge, No. 09-0697, 2010 Iowa App. LEXIS 573 (Iowa Ct. App. June 16, 2010)

Iowa Court Rules:

Iowa R. App. P. 6.801

II. WHETHER THE COURT SHOULD AFFIRM THE DISTRICT COURT BECAUSE RES JUDICATA DOES NOT APPLY TO THIS CASE BECAUSE IT IS BETWEEN DIFFERENT PARTIES ON DIFFERENT ISSUES.

Cases:

Israel v. Farmers Mut. Ins. Asso., 339 N.W.2d 143 (Iowa 1983)

Iowa Court Rules:

Iowa R. App. P. 6.903(2)(g)(1)

Other Authorities:

A. Vestal, *Preclusion/Res Judicata Variables: Parties*, 50 Iowa L. Rev. 43 (1969)

ROUTING STATEMENT

The reasons listed in Iowa R. App. P. 6.1101(3)(a)-(b) support this case being transferred to the court of appeals.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Nature of the Case. This appeal is a challenge to the Carroll County Board of Adjustment's decision to deny granting the Danners a variance from county zoning restricting the airspace surrounding the Arthur Neu Airport after the Danner's built a grain leg that intruded into the airport's protected airspace.

Course of Proceedings. After noticing the grain leg construction, the Carroll Airport Commission filed suit to force removal of the grain leg. *See Carroll Airport Commission v. Danner*, EQCV039422, Iowa Dist. Ct. filed June 16, 2017, appellate no. 17-1458. The Danners also applied to the Carroll County Board of Adjustment for a variance from the zoning regulations that applied to the airspace. The Carroll County Board of Adjustment decided March 9, 2017, and memorialized by letter dated March 13, 2017, to deny the Danner's request for a variance. App. at 23-24. On April 6, 2017, the Danners filed a petition for judicial review in the Iowa District Court for Carroll County. App. at 5-8. A telephonic hearing was held on the petition for judicial review on February 15, 2018, and an Order affirming the decision of the board

of adjustment was filed on February 23, 2018. No record was made during the district court's telephonic hearing. The Danners filed their notice of appeal on March 23, 2018. The combined certificate filed the same day ordered transcripts from the board of adjustment hearings but not the district court proceedings, because, as stated above, no record was made during the district court hearing on February 15, 2018. On July 13, 2018, Justice Zager entered an Order requesting a statement from the Danners on whether the transcripts of the board of adjustment proceeding were part of the record for the appeal. In response to the Order, the Danners withdrew their request for transcripts and the deputy clerk filed the notice of briefing schedule.

Disposition Below. The Iowa District Court for Carroll County on February 15, 2018, affirmed the Carroll County Board of Adjustment's decision to deny the variance requested by the Danners.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

The facts stated in the Danner's brief come from Case No. EQCV039422, Appellate No. 17-1458. While the factual recitation stated in the Danner's brief appears to be accurate based on the prior proceedings, no facts have been established in this case, because no record was created in this case and there is nothing for the appellate court to review.

ARGUMENT

The Danners present one issue for review. However, Appellants do not state whether error has been preserved on the issue they have raised as required by Iowa R. App. P. 6.903(2)(g)(1). Further, the agency record never became part of the district court record and there is no district court record. There is simply nothing for Iowa's appellate courts to review in this case.

I. THE COURT SHOULD AFFIRM THE DISTRICT COURT'S RULING AS IT IS UNABLE TO REACH THE MERITS OF THIS APPEAL BECAUSE THERE IS NO AGENCY RECORD TO REVIEW BECAUSE THE DANNER'S FAILED TO TRANSFER OR FILE THE AGENCY RECORD WITH THE DISTRICT COURT AND NO RECORD WAS MADE OF THE DISTRICT COURT PROCEEDINGS.

In *Alvarez v. IBP, Inc.*, 696 N.W.2d 1 (Iowa 2005), the Iowa Supreme Court was confronted with a similar situation to the one here. Maria Alvarez filed a petition for judicial review to challenge a deputy workers' compensation commissioner's decision denying her benefits in the district court and then appealed to the Iowa Supreme Court. *Id.* at 2. However, the Iowa Supreme Court was unable to reach the merits of the appeal, because the agency record was not part of the record before the district court or the Iowa Supreme Court. *Id.*

The *Alvarez* court noted this issue was dispositive of the appeal, because "the appellate courts cannot consider materials that were not before

the district court when that court entered its judgment." *Id.* at 3; *see* Iowa R. App. P. 6.801 ("Only the original documents and exhibits filed in the district court case from which the appeal is taken, the transcript of proceedings, if any, and a certified copy of the related docket and court calendar entries prepared by the clerk of the district court constitute the record on appeal."). Further, a party could not avoid the implications of Iowa R. App. P. 6.801 even if a party's included portions of the agency record in the appendix. *Alvarez*, 696 N.W.2d at 3.

The Court went on to hold that since there was no agency record, there was nothing for the appellate court to review and reviewing the district court's ruling, which was part of the record, was not possible without a record of what occurred at the agency level and the proper remedy for such an omission was affirmance of the district court's ruling. *Id.* at 3-4.

A similar conclusion was reach by the Iowa Court of Appeals, albeit in a slightly different context. In *Jensen v. City Council of Cambridge*, No. 09-0697, 2010 Iowa App. LEXIS 573, *1 (Iowa Ct. App. June 16, 2010), a city resident challenged a city ordinance he disagreed with after being denied an exemption from the ordinance. An appeal, Court of Appeals noted the agency record was not properly before the court and thus it had nothing to review. *Id.* at *6. Then Judge Mansfield disagreed with the court's analysis on this point

and attempted to distinguish the case from *Alvarez* as that case dealt with state agency action, which he saw as different from city council decisions since they were normally reviewed by certiorari. *Id.* at *8 (Mansfield, J., concurring in the judgment).

However, this line of reasoning does not need to be explored further in this case, because the Danners chose to challenge the Carroll County Board of Adjustment's decision through judicial review proceedings instead of certiorari proceedings. The Danners have not provided the agency record for review and have withdrawn their request for it. Without the agency record, the appellate courts have nothing to review in this case. *See Alvarez*, 696 N.W.2d at 3-4; *Jensen*, No. 09-0697, 2010 Iowa App. LEXIS 573, at *6. Accordingly, the district should be affirmed.

- II. THE COURT SHOULD AFFIRM THE DISTRICT COURT BECAUSE RES JUDICATA DOES NOT APPLY TO THIS CASE BECAUSE IT IS BETWEEN DIFFERENT PARTIES ON DIFFERENT ISSUES.
- A. Error Preservation. Appellants have failed to state whether error was preserved on these issues as required by Iowa R. App. P. 6.903(2)(g)(1). Should the Court reach the merits of this appeal, error was preserved on this issue when the district court considered and ruled on this issue.

B. Merits. The only argument the Danners have raise in their brief relates to res judicata. "For several years [the Iowa Supreme Court] has used the terms 'claim preclusion' and 'issue preclusion' in place of the generic historical term, res judicata." *Israel v. Farmers Mut. Ins. Asso.*, 339 N.W.2d 143, 146 (Iowa 1983). "Res judicata as claim preclusion applies when a litigant has brought an action, an adjudication has occurred, and the litigant is thereafter foreclosed from further litigation on the claim." *Id.* (citing A. Vestal, *Preclusion/Res Judicata Variables: Parties*, 50 Iowa L. Rev. 43 (1969)). Under res judicata, ("[a]n adjudication in a former suit between the same parties on the same claim is final as to all matters which could have been presented to the court for determination." *Id.*

Here, res judicata used as claim preclusion does not apply to this case, because this case is not between the same parties as the prior action on appeal. *See id.* (noting the prior proceedings must be between the same parties on the same claim). The prior proceeding on appeal, No. 17-1458, is between the Carroll Airport Commission and the Danners, while this proceedings is between the Danners and the Carroll County Board of Adjustment. Further, even considering res judicata in the generic sense, the claims are not same either. *Id.* (noting referring to res judicata in a generic sense requires a review of issue preclusion principles). The prior case relates to a nuisance action filed

by the Carroll Airport Commission, while this action is a challenge to a denial of a variance. Accordingly, the district court should be affirmed, because res judicata does not apply, nor was the board's decision arbitrary or capricious.

CONCLUSION

The Court should affirm the district court, because there is no agency record properly before the Court to review. Further, should the Court reach the merits of this appeal, res judicata does not apply to this case, because this case is between different parties on different issues. Accordingly, the district court should be affirmed.